3347
3347

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
I ND E X (PUBLIC RECORD)

WITNESS: DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
Crisp 3354 3461 3583

EXHIBITS EFOR 1D IN EVID WITHDRAWN
CX

Number 82 3352

Number 750 3353

Number 905 3460

Number 929 3460

Number 935 3460

Number 1109 3461

Number 1129 3461

Number 1599 3353

Number 2000 3353

Number 2006 3375

Number 3031 3555

Number 3102 3353

RX

Number 293 3493

For The Record,

Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



EXHIBITS

Number 28

For The Record,

3348

T
Pu)

0

IN EVID  WITHDRAWN

3458

Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025

3348



3349
3349

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

In the Matter of: )
Rambus, Inc. ) Docket No. 9302
______________________________ )

Thursday, May 29, 2003
9:30 a.m.

TRIAL VOLUME 18
PART 1
PUBLIC RECORD

BEFORE THE HONORABLE STEPHEN J. McGUIRE
Chief Administrative Law Judge
Federal Trade Commission
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Washington, D.C.

Reported by: Susanne Bergling, RMR

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



3350
3350

APPEARANCES:

ON BEHALF OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION:

M. SEAN ROYALL, Attorney
GEOFFREY OLIVER, Attorney
JOHN C. WEBER, Attorney
CHARLOTTE MANNING, Attorney
Federal Trade Commission
601 New Jersey Avenue, N._.W.
Washington, D.C. 20580-0000
(202) 326-3663

ON BEHALF OF THE RESPONDENT:

GREGORY P. STONE, Attorney

STEVEN M. PERRY, Attorney

PETER A. DETRE, Attorney

SEAN GATES, Attorney

Munger, Tolles & Olson LLP

355 South Grand Avenue, 35th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071-1560
(213) 683-9255

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



3351
3351

APPEARANCES:

ON BEHALF OF THE RESPONDENT:

A. DOUGLAS MELAMED, Attorney
Wilmer, Cutler & Pickering

2445 M Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20037-1420
(202) 663-6090

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025






3353
3353

spitting it out again with a different date. We"re not
at all sure that was actually sent twice with the same
language.

JUDGE McGUIRE: All right, so noted and entered
on that basis.

(CX Exhibit Number 750 was admitted into
evidence.)

MR. OLIVER: Third, CX-1599. This is the
license agreement between Hyundai and Rambus.

MR. PERRY: No objection.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Entered.

(CX Exhibit Number 1599 was admitted into
evidence.)

MR. OLIVER: Fourth is CX-2000, one of the sets
of Mr. Vincent"s green sheets or billing records.

MR. PERRY: No objection.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Entered.

(CX Exhibit Number 2000 was admitted into
evidence.)

MR. OLIVER: And fifth is CX-3102, this is the
file wrapper for the Rambus "575 patent.

MR. PERRY: No objection.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Entered.

(CX Exhibit Number 3102 was admitted iInto

evidence.)
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Whereupon--

RICHARD CRISP

a witness, called for examination, having previously
been duly sworn, was examined and testified further as
follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION (cont.)
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Good morning, Mr. Crisp.

A. Good morning, Mr. Oliver.

Q. Mr. Crisp, as you may recall, we left off
yesterday having discussed the December 1995 JEDEC
meeting. Do you recall that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And that was the meeting at which various
responses to the survey ballot were tabulated. Do you
recall that?

A. 1 generally recall we discussed that.

Q. Now, about a week after that December 1995
meeting, things with respect to Rambus® involvement in
JEDEC really started to go south, didn"t i1t?

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, objection, that"s
vague.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I*Il --

JUDGE McGUIRE: Sustained.

MR. OLIVER: Thank you, Your Honor.
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JUDGE McGUIRE: Restate.
BY MR. OLIVER:
Q. Well, shortly after that December 1995 meeting,
Mr. Crisp, Rambus received a letter from the IEEE,
right?
A. 1 don"t remember.
MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked as
CX-487. That is on the letterhead of IEEE dated
December 13, 1995, addressed to Mr. Geoff Tate from
Cheryl Rhoden.

Now, in this letter, the IEEE was following up

on the possibility that Rambus might have patent rights

relating to the proposed synchronous standard. [Is that
right?
A. Yes, sir, | believe that"s what this says.

Q. And then a few days after that, Mr. Lester
Vincent forwarded to Rambus the FTC"s proposed order in
the Dell case, right?

A. 1 don"t know about that.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:
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Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked as
CX-1990. It is on Blakely Sokoloff letterhead dated
December 19, 1995, addressed to Mr. Anthony Diepenbrock
from Mr. Lester Vincent, and the first sentence reads,
"Enclosed for your review are materials relating to the
proposed consent order regarding Dell Computer.”

Does CX-1990 refresh your recollection that in
December of 1995, Mr. Lester Vincent forwarded to
Rambus a copy of the FTC"s proposed consent in the Dell
matter?

A. No.

Q. But you certainly heard discussions of the FTC
Dell consent during the course of December and January,
didn®t you?

A. 1 remember hearing some discussion about it. |
don"t remember the time frame.

Q. And these two events caused considerable
concern within Rambus management, didn®t they?

A. 1 don"t know.

Q. Well, a meeting was held in early January 1996
to discuss whether Rambus should continue to
participate in JEDEC or withdraw. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 don"t remember that date.

Q. You do remember a meeting on that topic,

though?
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A. 1 can remember a meeting on that topic, yes.

Q. And you attended that meeting, right?

A. Well, I™m not sure which meeting you"re
referring to. 1It"s possible there was another meeting.
I did attend one meeting where that was the topic.

Q. Okay. You attended a meeting with respect to
whether Rambus should remain a member of JEDEC or
withdraw. Isn"t that right?

A. That"s correct, 1 did.

Q. And Mr. Lester Vincent attended that meeting?

A. That"s right.

Q. And Mr. Ed Taylor, a senior partner at his
firm, also attended that meeting?

A. That"s correct.

Q. And CEO Geoff Tate was there?

A. 1 think that"s right.

Q. And vice president David Mooring was there?

A. Yes, he was.

Q. And in-house counsel Tony Diepenbrock was also
there, right?

A. 1 don"t remember.

Q. And the decision was made to withdraw from
JEDEC, right?

A. 1 believe that was the result from the meeting.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
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JUDGE McGUIRE: You may.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-858. This i1s an email from you to CEO Geoff Tate
and a number of others dated January 22nd, 1996.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And if I could direct your attention to page 2
of this email and specifically to the sixth paragraph
toward the bottom of the page, do you see the sentence
there, "So in the future, the current plan is to go to
no more JEDEC meetings due to fear that we have
exposure in some possible future litigation.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, you did not agree with that decision, did

A. 1 don"t think that"s entirely accurate.

Q. Well, you thought that Rambus gained a lot of
intelligence by attending the JEDEC meetings, didn"t
you?

A. 1 think that we gathered some intelligence. 1
think we had some useful contacts we had established
there. And 1 also agreed with Mr. Taylor that there

could be some potential downside to attending the
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meetings. | mean, he had told us we had done nothing
wrong but that if we did wind up in some litigation at
some point in time, it could be misunderstood by a jury
what our role was there.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, move to strike
everything after the first sentence of his answer as
nonresponsive.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Sustained.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, isn"t it true that you thought
the concerns about equitable estoppel and potential
exposure were less than other people were expressing at
that meeting? Isn"t that right?

A. 1 had that belief at least at some point in

Q. But others expressed concern about the JEDEC
patent policy, didn"t they?

A. 1 think some people did express some concern
about that, yes.

Q. And they were concerned about potential
exposure in the event of future litigation?

A. 1 don"t think I necessarily remember hearing it
said that way, but I did hear the topic of potential
future litigation coming up.

Q. Let me direct your attention to page 2 of
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CX-858, the fourth paragraph, the second sentence
there. It reads, "l understand the concerns about the
patent policy and some potential exposure we could have
in the event of a future litigation."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. And the concern expressed related to equitable
estoppel and laches, right?

A. 1 believe 1 heard those concerns expressed.

Q. And in fact, Lester Vincent said no further
participation in any standards body, do not even get
close. Do you recall that?

A. Not -- no, I don"t recall that.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-1928. It"s a page of handwritten notes from Mr.
Lester Vincent, and if 1 could direct your attention
beginning about seven lines down, lines 7 through 10,
it reads, "No further participation in any standards
body (if there has been any) -- don"t even get close,"”
with three underlines under the word 'close”™ and a
couple of exclamation points.

Does that refresh your recollection that Mr.
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Vincent said no further participation In any standards
body, don"t even get close?

A. No.

Q. So, the decision was made to stop attending
JEDEC meetings because of fear of exposure iIn some
possible future litigation. Is that right?

A. My recollection was that was one of the
considerations.

Q. Well, that"s the only consideration that you
listed in CX-858. Isn"t that right?

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, he hasn®"t allowed him
to read the entire document. He"s certainly only been
showing the snippets he likes. That"s not a fair
question.

JUDGE McGUIRE: All right, then let"s take a
minute, and sir, you may read the entire document.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor. (Document
review.)

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Have you had a chance to look at CX-858?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And directing your attention to the sixth
paragraph on page 2, the concern you identified there
is the fear that we may have exposure In some possible

future litigation. Isn"t that right?
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CX-868. This is an email from you dated February 20,
1996. Now, does this refresh your recollection that
you, in fact, sent a copy of the JEDEC meeting minutes
to vice president Mooring, CEO Tate, vice president
Roberts and certain others?

A. Yes, sir, i1t does.

Q. And you included in-house lawyer Tony
Diepenbrock in that list as well, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. And iIn your cover note, you point out in
particular a Micron presentation with separate transmit
and receive clocks.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Okay, let"s take a look at the presentation
that caught your attention.

May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
JX-29. It is a copy of the minutes of interim meeting
JC-42.3 committee dated January 31, 1996.

IT I could ask you to turn, please, to page 17
in JX-29, now, this is a page captioned at the top,

Future SDRAM - Clock Issues, and then handwritten on
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the side, "Attachment F." | believe the lower
right-hand side bears the caption of Micron.

Now, this presentation is directed at a
standard for future SDRAMs, right?

MR. PERRY: That"s vague as to "standard for
future DRAMs.™ That"s unintelligible.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Mr. Oliver, do you want to
respond?

MR. OLIVER: I1°11 rephrase the question, Your
Honor.

JUDGE McGUIRE: All right, restate it.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. This presentation was not intended to revise
any earlier JEDEC standard. Isn"t that right?

MR. PERRY: Also speculation. He is not from
Micron. He didn"t make the presentation.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, he did receive the
minutes, he read the minutes, and he circulated the
minutes within Rambus with comments.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Well, you -- the question was

that the presentation was not intended to revise any
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meeting. If you like, 1 could rephrase the question.
JUDGE McGUIRE: All right, restate it.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, when you saw this set of minutes,
you understood that the Micron presentation was not
intended to revise an earlier JEDEC standard. Isn"t
that right?

A. Yes, sir, 1 think that"s right.

Q. In other words, your understanding was that
this was a presentation related to a future SDRAM
standard. Isn"t that right?

A. May 1 have a moment to look at the --

Q. Oh, certainly, sure.

A. -- minutes In addition to the presentation,
since | wasn"t at the meeting? (Document review.) The
minutes iIndicate it as being a first presentation on
clock issues. That"s all the information that 1 have
as to anything regarding their intent behind the
presentation.

Q. But you do see the caption at the top of the
first page, "Future SDRAM™"?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, 111 object that he
hasn"t allowed -- he hasn"t been allowed to see the

rest of 1t. |If he"s going to be asked to make a
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conclusion based on that one page, there®s other stuff
that relates to the intent of Micron, and 1 object that
we"re trying to get testimony about the intent of
Micron. Let"s ask Micron.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Well, in his last question,
he*s just asking about the headings, so 1"m going to
entertain that question. If he asks about other
portions, then 1711 uphold that objection to the extent
he hasn"t had a chance to go through it.

So, you may proceed, Mr. Oliver.

MR. OLIVER: Certainly. Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, why don"t you go ahead and take a
look at pages 17 through 22 of JX-29.

A. (Document review.)

Q. Mr. Crisp, you don"t see anything in there that
would indicate that this presentation was not directed
at future SDRAMs, do you?

A. The only thing 1 can see that makes me in any
way confused about whether i1t was directed solely at
future SDRAMs is just the comments that they made on
page 4 of that presentation, which is page 20 of the
exhibit, where they just speak of DRAMs. So, I"m not
sure that it"s limited solely to future SDRAMs.

Q. But i1t would certainly appear to encompass
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future SDRAMs. Is that right?

A. Well, certainly based on their title on each of
the pages of it, it seems that"s what their -- their
focus was.

Q. Okay. |ITf I could direct your attention back to
page 17, which was the first page of the Micron
presentation, the presentation starts off by noting
that PLL/DLL circuits are being considered to reduce
the apparent access time.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. So, iIn other words, you understood when you saw
this that PLL/DLL circuits were being considered for
future SDRAMs within JEDEC. Isn®"t that right?

A. All 1 know is when I saw this that Micron
stated they were being considered.

Q. Now, when you circulated this presentation to
CEO Tate, vice president Mooring, Vvice president
Roberts, Tony Diepenbrock and others, you suggested
that Rambus have a long, hard look at its IP, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. And you suggested that if there®s a problem,
Rambus should tell JEDEC, didn"t you?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. But Rambus never did tell JEDEC that this
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presentation could raise a problem with respect to
Rambus® 1P, did it?

MR. PERRY: Assumes facts not iIn evidence, that
it did raise problems, Your Honor.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Mr. Oliver?

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I"m not assuming any
facts. I"m simply asking for his -- his answer that
Rambus, in fact, did not say these things to JEDEC.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Overruled. 1711 hear the
question.

THE WITNESS: 1 have no information that we
provided any information to Micron or to JEDEC that
there might possibly be any sort of problem.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Now, during this time, Rambus was also
following the progress of its "646 application very
closely, wasn"t i1t?

A. 1™m not sure I know what that is, sir.

Q. You were involved during the course of 1996 iIn
negotiations with a company by the name of Mosys,
right?

A. 1 sat in a meeting with Mosys, representatives
of Mosys as well as Mr. Tate and Mr. Mooring.

Q. And one of the issues being discussed with

Mosys was possible infringement of a Rambus patent.
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Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s what I remember from the
meeting | sat in.

Q. And do you recall that one of the features of
the Mosys DRAM that Rambus believed infringed its
patents was dual edge clocking technology?

MR. PERRY: 1It"s overbroad, Your Honor, as to
dual edge clocking technology.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I"m simply asking for
his understanding as to what the issue was.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Overruled. 1711 hear the
answer .

THE WITNESS: What I remember was there was a
particular implementation that we had a patent on that
had some relation to dual edge clocking. It was a way
of actually implementing it on the chip, and my
recollection is that was the subject of the patent that
we discussed with them.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. And you recall that during the early months of
1996, Rambus was engaged iIn preparations for
negotiations with Mosys?

A. 1 -- 1 learned of that sometime in the mid part
of 1996, that there was some sort of preparatory work

being done within Rambus for a meeting with Mosys.
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MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:
Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-1316. It has a caption at the top with the Rambus
logo. Underneath that, it reads, ""Mosys Competitive

Summary,’™ and a date in the lower left-hand corner of
January 19, 1996.

Does CX-1316 refresh your recollection that in
the early part of 1996, Rambus was preparing for either
potential enforcement or potential negotiations --
excuse me, potential enforcement against or potential
negotiations with Mosys?

A. No, sir, it doesn"t.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?

JUDGE McGUIRE: You may.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-1319. This is a document also bearing a Rambus
logo, also entitled Mosys Competitive Summary, with a
date in the lower left-hand corner of March 29, 1996.

Does this document refresh your recollection
that as of March 1996, Rambus was preparing for either
enforcement against or negotiations with Mosys?

A. No, sir, it doesn"t.
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Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, during the -- during early
1996, Rambus was also preparing a letter for its formal
withdrawal from JEDEC, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you five documents
marked CX-873, CX-874, CX-876, CX-880 and CX-879. Do
you recognize these as five drafts of a letter from you
to the Electronic Industries Association?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, your signature appears on CX-873, 874, 876
and 880, but as 1 understand it, that was a
computer-generated signature. Is that right?

A. Pretty close to that. It was part of the
template file that 1 used for documents that were
created on my PC, so it just appeared basically on any
document that 1 created.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Wait, I don"t understand that
answer. He asked you about the signature, and 1 m not
sure | understand what your answer iIs, sO --

THE WITNESS: [I"m sorry, Your Honor. You want
me to clarify?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes, go ahead and clarify if
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you don®"t mind, Mr. Crisp.

THE WITNESS: The way we had our document
creation program set up is it had an electronic
signature in file on our computer, and so documents
that I created using that program automatically had a
signature affixed to them.

JUDGE McGUIRE: 1 see, okay.

THE WITNESS: So, it wasn"t truly computer
generated. 1 originally created the signature, but it
automatically appeared.

JUDGE McGUIRE: 1 understand, okay.

All right, Mr. Oliver.

MR. OLIVER: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. In any event, the fact that there is a
signature on CX-873, 874, 876 and 880 does not indicate
that those documents were ever sent. 1Is that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, you prepared CX-873, CX-874,
CX-876 and CX-880. Is that right?

A. No, sir, 1 don"t believe that 1 did create
those.

Q. Who did create those?

A. 1 had a role in creating at least one of these

documents. Mr. Diepenbrock had a role in editing these
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documents, and Mr. Vincent did as well from my
recollection.

Q. So, i1t would be fair to say, then, that CX-873,
CX-874, CX-876 and CX-880 reflect joint work of you, of
Mr. Diepenbrock and of Mr. Vincent?

A. 1 think that"s true. |It"s possible there may
have been some other inputs as well from other people.
Q. Did vice president Mooring have some input?

A. 1"m not certain, but 1 -- I think that he did.

Q. Wasn"t i1t vice president Mooring®s suggestion
that Rambus include a list of its issued patents in
this letter?

A. 1 don"t remember who suggested that. It may
have been Mr. Mooring. | just -- 1 really don"t
remember .

Q. In any event, CX-873, CX-874, CX-876 and CX-880
all do contain a list of issued Rambus patents. Is
that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s what I understand those --
those numbers to be.

Q. Now, on March 26th, 1996, you spoke with Mr.
Lester Vincent with respect to JEDEC. Isn"t that
right?

A. 1 don"t remember.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
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JUDGE McGUIRE: Go ahead.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-2006. These are handwritten notes from Mr. Lester
Vincent, the date iIn the upper left-hand corner
3/26/96, the caption at the top, Telecon, for
teleconference, with Richard Crisp.

IT I could direct your attention towards the

top of the page underneath "Thursday,™ it reads, "Voted
one time on 4 ballots."
Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And underneath that, there"s a reference to
early 1992, a reference to SDRAM.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And then some further details follow. |If you
look further down the page, it"s "Richard Cri," 1
assume for Richard Crisp; underneath that, "Billy
Garrett, alternate member."

Do you see that?
A. Yes, sir, | do.
Q. Now, does this refresh your recollection that

on March 26th, 1996, you had a conversation with Mr.

Vincent concerning the Rambus role in JEDEC?
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A. No.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, before 1 proceed, at
this time complaint counsel moves to admit CX-2006.

MR. PERRY: No objection.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Entered.

(CX Exhibit Number 2006 was admitted iInto
evidence.)

BY MR. PERRY:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-2005. These are handwritten notes of Lester Vincent
dated March 27, 1996. Again, at the top, Telecon, for
teleconference, with Richard Crisp.

IT I could direct your attention to the
beginning of the handwritten text, "JC-16, JC-42_X,
Richard Crisp went to.” Underneath that, "The other
ones, John Dillon."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And if you look about 10 or 12 lines down,
there"s a notation, "Take off email list circulating.”

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And then four lines from the bottom, it reads,
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"JEDEC, if member, you are a voting member."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Now, does this refresh your recollection that
on March 27th, 1996, you also had a telephone
conference -- conversation with Lester Vincent
concerning the Rambus role in JEDEC?

A. No, sir, it doesn"t.

Q. Now, on March 27th, you also sent Lester
Vincent copies of the draft letters that you had
prepared, right?

MR. PERRY: Objection, Your Honor, he didn"t
say he had prepared them. There®s already been
testimony.

MR. OLIVER: I1°11 withdraw the question, Your
Honor.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Restate.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. On March 27th, 1996, you sent Lester Vincent
copies of the draft letters that reflected the work of
you, of Mr. Diepenbrock, Mr. Vincent and possibly Mr.
Mooring. |Is that right?

A. 1 don"t remember the date.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
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BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-882. 1t"s a facsimile sheet with the Rambus logo in
the upper left-hand corner, the date March 27, 1996.
The left-hand box, to Lester Vincent, and the
right-hand box, from Richard Crisp, and in the text
below, the first sentence reads, ""As we discussed
Tuesday the 26th of March, 1 am sending you several
draft letters we have considered sending to JEDEC
letting them know of our intention not to renew our
membership."

Do you see that?

A. 1 see something that"s pretty close to that.

Q. Does that refresh your recollection that on
March 27th, 1996, you did send a set of several draft
letters to Lester Vincent?

A. Yes, sir, i1t does.

Q. Now, after this date, things were -- things
were put on hold for a while, weren"t they?

A. I™m not sure what -- what you mean by that.

Q. Well, no letter was actually sent to JEDEC for
three months after this. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, that"s what I now understand.

Q. Now, in the meantime, on April 30, 1996,

Rambus® 327 patent issued. Isn"t that right?
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A. 1 didn"t --
MR. PERRY: No foundation, Your Honor.
MR. OLIVER: I don"t know if there is or not.

I"m asking him if he knows.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: I know that the *327 patent
issued at some time in 1996, but I don"t know what date
it issued on, sir.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-1494. 1t bears a caption in the upper left-hand
corner, United States Patent, Farmwald, et al., the
right-hand side patent number, 5,513,327. Underneath
that, date of patent, April 30, 1996.

Does CX-1494 refresh your recollection that
Rambus® 327 patent issued on April 30th, 19967

A. No, sir, it doesn"t.

Q. Well, Mr. Crisp, Rambus® "327 patent is the
patent that Rambus was considering enforcing against
Mosys. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes --

MR. PERRY: Vague as to time, Your Honor.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Sustained. Restate.

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



3379
3379

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, may I strike the
answer? 1 don"t think there was an answer, but there®s
one that appears in the transcript. The objection was
sustained.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Sustained.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, as of May and June 1996, Rambus-*

"327 patent was the patent that Rambus was considering

enforcing against Mosys. Isn"t that right?
A. I'm not sure of the time frame, but 1 know we
were planning to enforce some sort of a patent -- or

the "327 patent against Mosys, but 1 just don"t
remember the time frame when I first learned that.
MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-889. The Ffirst page appears to be a fax page to
Lester Vincent from Anthony Diepenbrock. The second
page is a letter to Lester Vincent from Anthony
Diepenbrock dated June 17, 1996.

IT I could direct your attention to the first
five lines, it reads, "Pursuant to our discussion of
June 13, 1996 regarding our issued patent, U.S.

5,513,327, and I1°11 skip the description, picking up
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with the next line, "we would like your firm to give a

legal opinion on the enforcement readiness of this

patent. We would also like your firm®s opinion

regarding whether this patent would be infringed,

literally or otherwise, 1If a device were constructed

according to the information sent to you on June 14th."
Now, do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Does this refresh your recollection that as of
June 1996, Rambus was considering enforcing the *327
patent with respect to Mosys?

A. No, sir, it doesn"t.

Q. Now, on June 17, 1996, Rambus also sent its
final withdrawal letter to JEDEC. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 don"t remember the date, sir.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-887. 1t consists of two pages. The first page is a
letter addressed to Mr. McGhee dated June 17, 1996 from
you, and attached to that is a second page with the
caption Rambus U.S. and Foreign Patents, also with a
date In the upper right-hand corner of June 17, 1996.

Does CX-887 refresh your recollection that June

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



3381
3381

17, 1996 was the date that you sent the final version
of -- or I should say the operative version of the
Rambus withdrawal letter to JEDEC?

A. No, sir, it doesn"t.

Q. Mr. Crisp, if 1 could direct your attention to
page 2 of CX-887, this is the list of patents. Now,
you are aware that Rambus® "327 patent has been omitted
from that list, right?

A. Yes, I"m aware that it"s not on the list.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, you had suggested that Rambus
inform JEDEC that it was providing a list of all issued

U.S. patents in the spirit of full disclosure, right?

A. 1 don"t know that that was me who made that
suggestion.
Q. In any event, somebody made that suggestion iIn

the earlier draft letters. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. If we take a look back at the draft letters we
looked at earlier, CX-873, 874, 876 and 880, do you
still have those in front of you?

A. 1 think I have them here. Just give me a

moment to find them. Yes, | do have them in front of

Q. Thank you.
IT I could ask you to look first at CX-873,
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please, and if I could direct your attention to the --
towards the bottom of the page, the paragraph appearing
just before the list of patent numbers, it reads, "In
the spirit of full disclosure, Rambus, Inc. would like
to bring to the attention of JEDEC all issued U.S.
patents held by Rambus, Inc. ™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And then if I could ask you to turn next to
CX-874, and again looking at the line appearing just
before the list of patents, do you see the identical
language appearing there?

A. I™m sorry, could you ask the question again,
please?

Q. Yes. 1In CX-874, if 1 could direct your
attention to the line appearing immediately before the
list of Rambus patents.

A. Yes, | see --

Q. And do you see the same language appearing
there, "In the spirit of full disclosure, Rambus, Inc.
would like to bring to the attention of JEDEC all
issued U.S. patents held by Rambus, Inc.™?

A. Yes, | see that.

Q. And if you take a look at CX-876 and CX-880,

you"ll see the i1dentical language appears in those two
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drafts as well?

A. Yes, | do see that.

Q. If you could look now at CX-887, the letter
that was actually sent to JEDEC, that language does not
appear there, does it?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, in the earlier drafts, possibly you,
possibly someone else, but someone has suggested that
Rambus also confirm to JEDEC that the list of patents
was complete, right?

A. That"s the conclusion I would reach.

Q. Let me ask you to turn again back to CX-873,
please. |If you look after the sentence we just looked
at a moment ago, the last sentence before the list of
patents reads, ""The list is complete as of this writing
and follows below.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And again, if you could turn to CX-874, please,
and you"ll see the i1dentical language appearing in
CX-8747?

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. And if you look also at CX-876 and CX-880,
you"ll see that the same language appears in those two

drafts as well?
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A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. But again, if you look at CX-887, the letter
that was actually sent to JEDEC, there®s no statement
that the list of patents is complete as of the time of
the writing, is there?

A. That"s correct.

Q. And in fact, the list of patents attached to
the letter sent to JEDEC was not complete, was it?

A. At what point In time?

Q. At the time that the letter was sent to JEDEC
on June 17, 1996.

A. What I know is the "327 patent is not on there.
I"m not sure about any -- anything else other than
that.

Q. But iIn other words, because of that, the list
attached to the letter sent to JEDEC was not complete.
Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, someone had also suggested that Rambus
tell JEDEC that Rambus would not agree to the terms of
the JEDEC patent licensing policy. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. If 1 can direct your attention specifically to
CX-873, and the third paragraph there, the second

sentence beginning, "Accordingly.”
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A. Yes.

Q. That reads, "Accordingly, Rambus, Inc. cannot
agree to the terms of the JEDEC patent policy as it
limits our ability to solely control the dissemination
and use of our intellectual property.”

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. And then if I could ask you to take a look at
CX-874, please, and again, if 1 could direct your
attention to the third paragraph there, please, the
second sentence iIn this paragraph reads, '"Rambus, Inc.
cannot agree to the terms of the JEDEC patent policy as
it limits our ability to conduct business according to
our business model.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. But neither of those statements appears in the
final letter that was sent to JEDEC, does it?

A. That"s correct, yes.

Q. Now, the final letter that was sent to JEDEC
does not identify any specific pending patent
applications, does it?

A. That"s correct.

Q. It just makes a general reference to Rambus

having applied for a number of additional patents?
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A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, the earlier suggestion was that Rambus at
least tell JEDEC that the pending patent applications
related to high bandwidth memory and signaling
technology, right?

A. 1 don"t remember that.

Q. If I could ask you to turn to CX-880, please.
IT I could direct your attention to the next to last
sentence, please, it reads, "In addition, there are
numerous pending applications relating to high
bandwidth memory and signaling technology."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. But again, that language did not appear in the
final letter sent to JEDEC, did i1t?

A. That"s correct.

Q. Instead, it was replaced with a sentence
reading -- and 1711 direct your attention here to
CX-887, the last sentence of the letter, 1t was
replaced with the sentence reading, ""Rambus has also
applied for a number of additional patents in order to
protect Rambus technology.™

That"s what was put in the final letter to
JEDEC, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.
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Q. So, as Rambus was withdrawing from JEDEC,
Rambus didn®"t tell JEDEC that it had any SDRAM-related
patent applications, did it?

A. That"s correct, sir.

Q. In fact, the withdrawal letter basically just
said 1t has applications relating to Rambus technology,
right?

MR. PERRY: Misstates the document, Your Honor,
which by this point ought to speak for itself.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Sustained.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, the letter actually sent to JEDEC
reads that the patent applications protect Rambus
technology. 1Isn"t that right?

A. No, sir, |1 don"t see those words on this
document.

Q. Looking again at CX-887, the last sentence,
"Rambus has also applied for a number of additional
patents in order to protect Rambus technology.™

Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, it does say that.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, don"t you think it"s misleading
to send to JEDEC a withdrawal letter that refers to a
list of Rambus patents, but you leave off the list the

only issued Rambus patent that relates to ongoing JEDEC
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work?

MR. PERRY: Objection, assumes facts not in
evidence that it was intentional.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Mr. Oliver?

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I"m not assuming it
was intentional. I°m just asking whether he
understands that to be misleading.

MR. PERRY: If he"s not going to claim that
"misleading’” has any intent element, Your Honor, then
that"s fine. | had not understood from his many briefs
that that"s what his view was of the word "misleading."

JUDGE McGUIRE: Then sustained.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, 1711 move on.

After Rambus withdrew from JEDEC, it continued
to monitor the activities of JEDEC, right?

A. Maybe you could be a little more specific by
what you mean when you say “monitored."

Q. Well, you still had an interest in the
activities of JEDEC. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 certainly was curious what was going on
within JEDEC, yes.

Q. And you also had an interest in what was going
on with SyncLink. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, sir, | had an interest In any areas that
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may represent potential competition.
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MR. PERRY: Your Honor, could we establish some
foundation that he"s seen this before instead of
reading the whole thing and wasting much more time?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I am trying to
establish a foundation. || do need to read this --

JUDGE McGUIRE: Well, you don"t need to read
iIt. You need to ask him if he"s ever seen this
document, and then we"ll go from there, and then maybe
at that point 111 let you make some reference, but
let"s ask the most inherent question, which is have you
seen this document.

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, may 1 approach?

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-89 -- excuse me, 898. This i1s from Rick Barth to
CEO Tate, copying the executive group and a number of
other individuals also dated August 15, 1996, and
you"ll see here the first sentence reads, "1 think
Richard Crisp might know something about both edges of
the clock."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, with that in mind, if I could ask you to
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look back at CX-897, and if 1 could direct you to the
statement under 200-Megahertz SDRAM --

MR. PERRY: Your Honor, excuse me, but you
directed Mr. Oliver to ask him if he had seen that
document before, and all he"s shown iIs another document
he*s not listed as receiving where his name®s in it.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes, 1 did that, Mr. Perry,
that"s true.

Mr. Oliver?

MR. OLIVER: Your Honor, I want to -- the next
question 1 want to ask about is whether he had any
conversations with individuals about this issue, but 1
need to establish what the issue i1s in order to be able
to ask whether he had conversations.

JUDGE McGUIRE: All right, 1 am going to give
him that opportunity, Mr. Perry, and then you are going
to ask him that question that 1 asked you to ask him,
right?

MR. OLIVER: Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE McGUIRE: Okay, very good.

BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Let me start by asking the question, with
respect to CX-897, do you recall seeing this document
in or about August 15, 19967

A. No.
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Q. If 1 could direct your attention to the line
200-Megahertz SDRAM, Do we know that the proposal is
clocking on both edges of a 100 megahertz clock?"

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do see that.

Q. Now, do you recall discussing with CEO Tate or
any other members of the executive group or Rick Barth
in about August of 1996 whether 200-megahertz SDRAM was
clocking on both edges of the 100-megahertz clock?

A. No.

Q. Now, Mr. Crisp, a couple of weeks later, you
prepared a series of slides on the so-called rambler,
right?

A. 1 don"t remember.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-1320. It"s a document that consists of about four
slides per page and five pages. The lower left-hand
corner, in the small print, reads, "R. Crisp, Rambler,
8/30/96."

Do you see this?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, CX-1320 is a document that you prepared on

For The Record, Inc.Waldorf, Maryland(301) 870-8025



3393

3393
or before August 30, 1996. Is that right?
A. Yes, that"s right.
Q. Now, the Rambus -- excuse me, the rambler was a

document that was circulated within Rambus. |Is that
right?

A. I™m sorry, could you ask that question again?

Q. Yes. The rambler was a document that was
circulated within Rambus?

A. The rambler was actually the name of a meeting
that we held from time to time iIn the company over
lunch hour, and whoever made a presentation generally
circulated their presentation to those that were in
attendance at the meeting and anyone else that might
not have been that was interested in it.

Q. So, CX-1320 is a presentation you made at one
of those meetings. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And your presentation was based on the theme of
why SDRAMs won®t run fast?

A. Actually, what it says is why SDRAMs won®"t run
fast in PCs.

Q. Okay. Now, within your discussion of SDRAMs,
you also asked what about double clocked data, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And if I could direct your attention to page 4
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and specifically to the slide in the lower right-hand
corner, it"s the beginning of your discussion of what
about double clocked data.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And the wave diagrams in the bottom part of
that slide reflect data transition on both the rising
and falling edges of the clock, right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And if I could ask you to turn to page 5,
please, do you see the top two slides outline double
clocked data, one for read case and one for write case?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. So, In other words, a little over two months
after submitting your withdrawal letter to JEDEC, you
were outlining for others within Rambus SDRAMs using
double clocked data, right?

A. 1 would describe this document differently.

Q. Well, in fact, CX-1320 is based in part on
information you had obtained at JEDEC. Isn"t that
right?

A. Well, certainly nothing that had anything to do
with double clocked data. It was just simply some of
the wave forms of the other nets that are shown on the

circuit diagram I had on the front page.
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MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, I"ve handed you a document marked
CX-905. This is an email from you to all Rambus staff
dated September 4, 1996, and if 1 could direct your
attention to the first line, "One more time so that all
hear: The material 1 presented in my Rambler contained
some JEDEC material which is not permitted to be shared
with any company who is not a member of JEDEC.™

So, this was actually a follow-up reminder you
issued to various individuals at Rambus. Isn"t that
right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. Now, during this time period, you continued to
follow events of SyncLink, right?

A. I™m not sure how to answer that question. | -
I certainly had a curiosity about what sort of things
were happening In the area of development of the
SyncLink specification.

MR. OLIVER: May 1 approach, Your Honor?
JUDGE McGUIRE: Yes.
BY MR. OLIVER:

Q. Mr. Crisp, if I could ask you to turn, please,

to page 183 in CX-711, if I could direct your attention
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about one-third of the way down page 183, you~"ll see
that there"s the beginning of a new email. 1t is sent
from you to the executive group at Rambus, also
business development group and to -- 1 think that"s a
Ms. Laura Fleming of Rambus. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And the date of this document was August 30,
19967

A. Yes, sir, that"s right.

Q. And i1f you look at the Subject line about
halfway down the page, it"s towards the bottom of the
caption, "SyncLink/Toshiba/NEC/Intel"s request for
questions.™

Do you see that?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. And you understand that a portion of the email
was describing events at SyncLink?

A. 1°d like to have a chance to look over the
document before 1 answer that question.

Q. Okay.

A. (Document review.) I"ve looked it over.

Q. Do you see a number of references to SyncLink
throughout this email?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. Now, if I could direct your attention to page
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184, do you see the last four lines there, the
discussion of Intel? Let me read the passage to you.
"1 have this great concern that Intel has
simply realized that they have us and the rest of the
DRAM industry over a barrel, that they can play us off
of them, and when the time is right from their
perspective, they will actually make their decision of
what to actually use. In the meantime, they," and
carrying over now to the top of page 185, "will say
internally that they are pushing forward two if not
three different potential technologies (R2, SyncLink,
and 200-plus megahertz SDRAM?), Are keeping the players
"honest”™ by playing one off the other."
Do you see that?

A. Yes, | do.

Q. Now, in the passage that I"ve just read, with
R2, you were referring to a version of the RDRAM,
right?

A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.

Q. And by 200-megahertz SDRAM, you meant the next
generation of SDRAM. 1Isn"t that right?

A. Well, 1 didn"t know what the next generation
was, but that represented something we"d heard about
that was under consideration.

Q. Certainly it was more advanced that any SDRAMs
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that were being sold as of 1996. Isn"t that right?

A. Yes, I believe that"s correct.

Q. Now, once again at this point, you were
recommending to the executive group that Rambus review
its intellectual property to figure out what it had
that would cover SyncLink. Isn"t that right?

A. 1 don"t remember. Yes, that"s right, 1 see
something in here about -- let me reread that again
before I answer your question. (Document review.)
Yes, would you please ask your question again?

Q. Yes. You were recommending that Rambus take
another look at its intellectual property with respect
to SyncLink, right?

A. 1 -- yes, sir, we needed to always monitor
where our intellectual property position was relative
to SyncLink.

Q. Maybe we can just bring up the last paragraph
of the email, the conclusion there that you have
written, "Finally, 1 want to again bring up the issue
of IP and the importance that we have our issued
patents and any pending claims looked at long and hard
to do as much as we can to anticipate the SL work."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, 1 do.

Q. And the reference to SL there is SynclLink,
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right?
A. Yes, sir, that"s correct.
Q. "ITf they are successful (1 doubt it) but we can

collect royalties from them, then it probably doesn"t
matter other than to our pride. As long as we collect
big royalty checks every quarter, then we should be
OoK."

Do you see that?

A. Yes, sir, | do.

Q. And that was your conclusion that you passed on
to the executive group, right?

A. Well, it was a conclusion | had reached that 1
passed on to the executive group as well as the other
people that were on the distribution list.

Q. And that conclusion applied equally to the
200-megahertz SDRAM, didn"t i1t?

A. 1 